ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 23, 2011
1:32 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan
Senat or Kevi n Meyer
Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Johnny Ellis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 5

"An Act relating to eligibility requirenents for nedical
assistance for certain children and pregnant wonen; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 5

SHORT TITLE: MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE ELI G BI LI TY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVIS, EGAN, ELLIS, FRENCH, W ELECHOWSKI

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) HSS, FIN

03/ 07/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 07/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 07/ 11 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 23/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN PURDUE

Presi dent and Chi ef Executive Oficer

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Honme Associ ation
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2011



THOVAS OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TION STATEMENT: Presented SB 5 for Senator Davis,
sponsor.

JOHN SHERWOOD

Medi cal Assi stance Adm ni strator

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 5.

KATI E CHAPMAN

Pl anned Par ent hood

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

CAREN ROBI NSON

Al aska Wnen's Lobby

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

STACI E KRALY

Assi stant Attorney Ceneral

Departnent of Law

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 5.

JOY LYON

Executive Director

Associ ation for the Education of Young Children
Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

GUS MARKS

Juneau Youth Services

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

MARY SULLI VAN

Al aska Primary Care Association

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

RANDY SWVEEET
United Way of Anchorage

t he

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 23, 2011



Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

DEBBI E LEFLECHE

YWCA of Anchorage

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

WEETA MORRI SON, representing herself.
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

KATHY DI AMOND

Tanana Chi efs Conference

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

Rl CHARD PECK

Board President Liuliuk Cinic

Unal aska, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

REBECCA HOWE

Raven' s Wy

Sitka, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 5.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:33: 07 PM

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Dyson, Egan, Meyer, and Chair Davis.

SB  5- MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE ELI G BI LI TY

1:33: 13 PM
CHAI R DAVI S announced the first order of business would be SB 5,
the Denali KidCare Bill.

KAREN PURDUE, President and CEO Alaska State Hospital and
Nursing Honme Association (ASHNA), established in 1953, said
ASHNA has consistently supported Denali KidCare and continues to
support its passage today. They are involved in children's lives
at delivery and al so when they need acute nedical care. It is a
huge concern when you have a very sick child and coverage is not
avai |l abl e.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2011



Denali KidCare has allowed famlies to seek nedical care at the
nmost appropriate tinme for their children. ASHNA was di sappoi nted
in the governor's veto l|last year. Fourteen years ago she was
i nvol ved as Conmmi ssioner of the Departnment of Health and Socia
Services in fashioning Denali KidCare.

1:35: 56 PM
THOVAS OBERMEYER, staff to Senator Bettye Davis, gave an
overview of the bill. SB 5 is an act relating to eligibility

requi renents for nedical assistance for certain children and
pregnant wonen. SB 5 establishes and restores to the original
|l evel s of fourteen years ago the qualifying inconme eligibility
standard to 200 percent of the federal poverty level for the
State Children's Health Insurance Program (SCH P), called Denal
KidCare in Al aska. Although one of the wealthiest states, Al aska
is one of only four states which funds its SCH P program bel ow
200 percent of the federal poverty |evel.

This bill nmnmakes health insurance accessible to an estimated
1,077 nore uninsured children and 225 pregnant wonen in Al aska
These are the people who were dropped from the system when the
| evel was reduced to 175 percent. Denali KidCare is an enhanced
Medi caid reinbursement program receiving up to 70 percent
mat chi ng funds.

Denali KidCare serves an estimated 7,900 Al aska children and
remains one of the least costly nedical assistance programs in
the state. Intervention and preventive care will greatly inprove
Al aska children's health and yield substantial savings to the
state and private sector hospital energency roons. Uninsured
children are five tinmes as |likely not to have a regular doctor
as insured children and four tines nore likely to use energency
roons. A simlar bill was overwhelmngly passed with bipartisan
support in 2010. Governor Parnell vetoed the bill over concern
of increased eligibility which would require an increase in
state funded i nduced term nations of pregnancies.

Medi caid funds 51 percent of all births in Alaska. In order to
receive continued funding for the state Medicaid program and to
conply with state law, constitutional provisions, and Al aska
Suprene Court rulings, the state nust provide nedical services
for pregnant wonen including nedically necessary term nations as
wel | as prenatal and postpartum care.

The Al aska Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
estimated that no nmpbre than 22 induced termnations would

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2011



result. Induced termnations under Denali KidCare cost about
$384, 000 annually, or less than .18 percent of the $217 mllion
Denali KidCare budget. Wiile the governor understandably is
concerned about the nushroom ng costs of the state Medicaid
program Denali KidCare should not be anobng first cuts at the
expense of Alaska's nost vul nerable children and pregnant wonen.
Increasing eligibility to 200 percent is unconplicated,
manageabl e, and coul d take effect inmedi ately.

1:40: 58 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked if indeed this is the sane bill as |ast year
and we still have the same governor, isn't it destined for the
sane fate.

CHAIR DAVIS responded she did have a brief neeting with the
governor at the beginning of the session, and they could not
agree on this issue. He has not had a change of mnd. People
within the departnment are trying to cone up with a solution. She
would like to at least nove the bill from Health and Social
Services to Finance. She did contact the conm ssioner's office
and |l et them know she was going to nove forward.

SENATOR MEYER said it sounds |ike discussions are still ongoing.

CHAIR DAVIS answered yes, the departnent has said it would get
back to her with possible solutions or suggestions.

1:43:58 PM

JOHN SHERWOOD, Medical Assistance Admnistrator, Departnent of
Heal th and Soci al Services (DHSS), said he was here primarily to
answer questions. The departnent s continuing to analyze
possi bl e options.

CHAIR DAVIS asked if noving the bill forward at this tine would
interfere with those conversati ons.

MR. SHERWOOD replied to the best of his know edge DHSS has no
position on novenent of the bill.

CHAI R DAVI S opened public testinony on SB 5.

1:45:56 PM

KATI E CHAPMAN, representing Planned Parenthood, said Planned
Par ent hood Votes Al aska supports the increase in Denali KidCare
eligibility. The increase is good policy for the health and
economcs of our state. It reflects sound fiscal policy;
children and pregnant wonmen w thout access to health care are

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2011



four times as likely to use enmergency room care. SB 5 sinply
brings eligibility back to the original |evel approved by the
legislature in 1999. Alaska continues to be one of the few
states that do not prioritize the needs of children and pregnant
wonen.

1:47:43 PM

CAREN ROBI NSON, representing the Al aska Wnen's Lobby, said the
Al aska Wnen's Lobby has been at the table in support of Denal
Ki dCare since 1999. They were defeated in 2004, and were pleased
when the eligibility changed |ast year, and crushed when the

governor vetoed the bill. Nearly 200 organizations have joined
in asking the legislature to put us back up to 200 percent. Her
grandson was a Denali KidCare baby; the hospital bill for his

birth was $65,000; this would have been a crushing debt for his
parents. She remi nded the conmttee that the |egislature has the
veto override power.

1:50: 37 PM

SENATOR MEYER said the commttee is supportive of SB 5, but
there is that issue that is a concern to the governor and other
| egi sl ators. He asked if she had any suggesti ons.

M5. ROBINSON responded that because of the constitution there
are no real solutions. She would like to get a better handle on
coding; there is sone confusion regarding what is considered
medi cally necessary. Even if a woman receives counseling but
does not actually have an abortion, it could be coded as an
abortion related service. There is also a national waiver
program which involves intensive famly planning services. The
nmost recent study shows that states with this waiver have cut
abortion rates in half. This helps famlies to make good
deci sions, and brings down the nunber of abortions instead of
penal i zi ng wonen who nake the decision to have a child and who
need this health care. She said she understands and respects the
i ssue.

SENATOR MEYER said he had heard the sanme thing. Sonetines a
m scarriage could be coded as an abortion. So this does need to
be researched. A miscarriage is a |oss.

MS. ROBI NSON agr eed.
1:54:59 PM
CHAIR DAVIS asked M. Sherwood to return to the stand. Noting

that many wonen say mscarriages are classified as abortions,
she asked himto speak about the nedical coding.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2011



MR. SHERWOOD said he was not an expert on the coding, but he
could provide sone information. He said that the departnent
reviewed the statistics for "abortion related services" and they
did not find instances where mscarriages were reported as
abortions. For purposes of clarification, they are not grouping
every termnation of pregnancy together. He could provide nore
specific information on the actual coding.

CHAI R DAVI S asked what the state actually pays towards abortions
and how are they billed.

MR. SHERWOOD answered eligibility categories are not changed.
Denali KidCare is a subset of the larger Medicaid program Wen
anyone with Medicaid eligibility has an abortion, the state pays
and does not claim federal funds. These wonmen may be eligible
for famly or disability related Medicaid. At the paynent |eve
it is all just Medicaid.

CHAI R DAVI S asked why the state doesn't claim the federal funds
for abortions.

MR. SHERWOOD responded there is a federal law restricting use of
federal funds for abortions, the Hyde anendnent. This mandates
that federal funds can only be used for abortions in the case of
rape, incest, or to save the life of the nother. The state w |
claim federal funds if they receive a form from the physician
certifying those conditions have been net. Generally speaking
the form is not subnmtted. So they lack the docunentation to
justify making the federal expenditure.

CHAI R DAVI S asked if DHSS coul d make that a requirenent.

MR. SHERWOOD responded that court cases prevent us fromlimting
our cover age.

CHAIR DAVIS asked if they could be paid by the federa
government, why providers are not required to submt forns.

2:00: 21 PM
MR. SHERWOOD answered the state doesn't know what cases m ght be
i nvol ved. Providers m ght not always know with certainty.

2:00: 52 PM

STACIE KRALY, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law,
(DAL), said the question is can we require providers to submt
certification in order to seek federal matching dollars for Hyde

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2011



Amendnent abortions. She said she did not know whether the
department has evaluated that question, but it warrants further
investigation. DHSS could potentially increase its reporting
requirenents to require providers to submt that certification
for purposes of federal reinbursement. She said she could | ook
into this.

SENATOR DYSON said his nmenory is we had this debate a year or
nmore ago; for a famly of two, at 175 percent; they could be
maki ng $45 or $58 thousand dol |l ars.

MR. SHERWOOD said he had the chart in his folder. Annual incone
for a famly of 2 at 175 percent of poverty is $32,165; for a
famly of four it is $48, 895.

2:03:34 PM

JOY LYON, Executive Director, Al aska Association for the
Education of Young Children (AEYC), said Denali Ki dCar e
expansion is high on their |list of priorities. AEYC also
represents many |ocal Juneau partners with its Best Begi nnings
partnership. They want to get famlies away from the energency
room Partnership for Famlies in Juneau is working wth
pedi atricians and health providers. Al are using a screening
tool around the risk factors for stress in the famly. Doctors
are able to guide famlies to appropriate services. Lowering the
eligibility level for Denali KidCare would result in stronger,
heal t hi er children.

2: 05:46 PM

GUS MARKS, Juneau Youth Services, said about 75 percent of their
clients are on Denali KidCare. One issue is that grants are
becom ng nore conpetitive and they receive |ess funding each
year. The expansion of Denali KidCare would hel p them

2:06: 50 PM

MARY SULLI VAN, Alaska Primary Care Association, testified in
support of SB 5. Children with access to prinmary care have
healthier lives and do better in school. She has a fam |y nenber
who got pregnant early in life, and having the option of Denal
KidCare was part of her decision to keep the baby. Now the
nmother is off of public support and is a productive citizen.

Denali KidCare helps people mneke better choices. Anchorage
Senior Citizen Advisory Comm ssion also unaninously voted to
support this bill; 8,000 seniors are raising grandchildren in

Al aska, and many are on |limted incones.

2: 09: 06 PM

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2011



RANDY SWEET, United Way of Anchorage, said the United Wy
supports the increase in eligibility. They do appreciate the
conplexities of this issue; Al askans have a tradition of working
together to solve problens. Together we can respect diverse
viewpoints and pronote and protect the health of vulnerable
worren and chil dren

2:10: 56 PM
DEBBI E LEFLECHE, YWCA of Anchorage, testified in support of SB
5. She said preventive care saves us all noney.

2:11:55 PM

WEETA MORRI SON, representing herself, said she was a single
parent and fortunately had insurance but she knows others who
have used Denali KidCare. Receiving preventive care prevents
future problens.

2:13:11 PM

KATHY DI AMOND, Tanana Chiefs, testified in support of SB 5. They
have seen many patients benefit from this coverage. There wl|
be many children and pregnant wonen who woul d be covered and be
eligible to receive nedical care

2:14:19 PM

Rl CHARD  PECK, Board President, Liuliuk dinic, Unal aska,
testified in support of SB 5. He said that expansion of Denali
KidCare would help them to sustain their nunber one priority,
which is the youth of their community. He would like to rem nd
the governor that Unalaska is Anerica's nunber one fishing port
and this program would help them sustain and maintain the port.
This would add coverage for about 30 to 40 famlies in their
comunity.

2:15:12 PM

REBECCA HOWE, Raven's Way in Sitka, said she works wth
teenagers who have addiction issues and Denali KidCare has
hel ped them receive appropriate treatnment, including aftercare
services. Increasing eligibility will help these youth and their
famlies.

2:16:41 PM

CHAI R DAVI S asked if any commttee nmenbers had comments.
SENATOR MEYER said he didn't know the neaning of "nmedically

necessary" abortions, and wondered if it was as easy as a wonan
sayi ng she m ght be depressed. Qobviously that is a big issue.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 23, 2011



CHAI R DAVI S said she doubted it was that easy.

JOHN SHERWOOD said the DHSS does not have a standard in statute
or regulation about "nedical necessity.” The coverage of
abortions cane about through court order. That determ nation of
"medi cal necessity” is made by the physician.

CHAI R DAVI S asked if he had requested a definition of the term

2:19: 50 PM

MR. SHERWOOD noted that prior to 1998 abortions were covered for
Medicaid eligible wonen through the general relief nedica
program There was a definition of therapeutic abortion in that
regul ati on. DHSS could provide that to the commttee.

CHAIR DAVI S said she would i ke that.

MR. OBERMEYER said Senator Davis' office had a |egal nenorandum
prepared |ast Novenber, by Jean M schel of Legislative Legal
Servi ces, and they asked about types of abortions and
definitions. Jean M schel said that for general relief funding,
7 AAC 47.290 provides as foll ows:

"(7) Elective abortion neans a procedure other than a
t herapeutic abortion to termnate a pregnancy. (8)
Therapeutic abortion nmeans the termnation of a
pregnancy certified by a physician as nedically
necessary to prevent the death or disability of the
wonman or to aneliorate a condition harnful to the
woman's physical or psychological health, or that
resulted from actions that would constitute a crine of
sexual assault, a crine of sexual abuse of a mnor, or
the crime of incest under 11.41.450".

So there are sone admnistrative code provisions that do define
it currently, and there are federal definitions as well.

SENATOR MEYER said he would like a copy of the neno.
MR. OBERMEYER said the Suprene Court wites "it is instructive
to note the trial court definition of 'mnedically necessary’

i ncl udes the professional judgnment of the physician.”

CHAIR DAVIS said all the information would be provided to
comm ttee nenbers.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -10- March 23, 2011



SENATOR DYSON said "nedically necessary"” is not defined for
Denali KidCare by statute or regulation or by court decision in
the State of Al aska.

2:24:36 PM

CHAIR DAVIS cl osed public testinony on SB 5 and said she would
bring it before the commttee on Mnday. She stated she would
like to nove the bill on that date.

2:25:06 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
she adjourned the neeting at 2:25 p. m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2011



